



Copyright



Rhode Island Patient Tracking System - EMT User Guide

Published Date - August 28, 2012

Trademarks

Microsoft and Windows are trademarks of Microsoft Corporation. Other brands and their products are trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective holders and should be noted as such.

Disclaimer

The information in this document is for guidance purposes only. It is not a binding or contractual agreement on how to use the RI Patient Tracking System, but rather a guide to its use. The information contained in this document is subject to change without notice. The software described in this document is furnished under one or more Program/Product License Agreements and may only be used in strict compliance therewith. The information is provided "as is" and while we will endeavor to keep this information up-to-date and accurate, we make no representations or warranties of any kind, expressed or implied, about the completeness, accuracy, reliability, suitability or availability with respect to the EMT User Guide or the information, products, services, or related graphics contained within said document. Any reliance placed on such information is therefore strictly at your own risk. For the most current User Guide, please refer to the RI Department of Health, Division of Emergency Medical Services website.

Software Designer

Aetreos, LLC, PO Box 182, Barrington, RI 02806-0182

Equipment

The EMS equipment was purchased by Lifespan under the following funding sources:

- HHS Healthcare Facilities Emergency Preparedness Partnership Grant (HFPEP 070016-01-00)
- HHS Health Resources and Services Administration, "Healthcare and Other Facilities" Grant (HRSA C76HF19565)
- Rhode Island Department of Health "Patient Tracking System Grant" (Award # 3219704)

The hospital equipment was purchased by Hospital Association of Rhode Island under the Department of Homeland Security Grant-FY 07 Homeland Security Grant Program (40-605-FY07).

Software development funding received from the Rhode Island Department of Health.

1



Table of Contents

General Information	3	
System Components	6	
Entering Patient Information	8	
Step 1: Access Patient Tracking System (PTS) Website	8	
Step 2: Enter ID Band/Tag Number	8	
Step 3: Select MCI	9	
Step 4: Select Triage Code	11	
Step 5: Enter Patient Last Name	12	
Step 6: Enter Patient First Name	13	
Step 7: Enter Patient Middle Initial/Name (Optional)	13	
Step 8: Enter Date of Birth	14	
Step 9: Select Gender	14	
Step 10: Select Incident Type	15	
Step 10.1: Trauma - Select Primary Injury Cause	16	
Step 10.2: Trauma - Select the Primary Injury Location	16	
Step 10.3: Trauma - Select Primary Injury Type	17	
Step 10.4: Medical - Select Suspected Illness	17	
Step 10.5: Medical - Select Illness Detail	18	
Step 11: Enter Clinical Note	18	
Step 12: Select Receiving Healthcare Facility	19	
Step 13: Select Estimated Time of Arrival	20	
Step 14: Review Summary	20	
Step 15: Hospital Call Back	21	
Step 16: Changes in Patient Information or Reciving Facility	21	
Step 17: Adding Multiple Patients	22	
Step 18: Final Dispositon	22	
Troubleshooting	23	
Appendix A: Incident Type Choices	30	



General Information

Getting to know PHEMS

The Public Health Emergency Management Suite, or PHEMS, was developed as a result of the Station Nightclub fire in 2003. An evaluation after the tragedy highlighted the importance of establishing a more consistent system of communication among health care and public health partners.

PHEMS is designed to provide improved situational awareness during day-to-day operations, planned events and large-scale disasters.

The system is routinely used in private and municipal EMS transport vehicles, and in emergency departments, but can also be utilized by an Incident Commander or Transport Officer at the scene of an emergency, in the Rhode Island Department of Health Operations Center or the State Emergency Operations Center or by federal partners who may be responding to an event of national significance.

The Public Health Emergency Management Suite is made up of four modules, providing the abilities of bed capacity monitoring, critical messaging, patient tracking, and reporting:

The Hospital Capacity System or HCS allows for real-time bed tracking and diversion status at all Rhode Island healthcare facilities. In the event of a large scale incident in the state, the system allows the EMS Transport Officer the ability to visualize the number of patients a hospital can accept. This information is critical to ensure that patient care needs are met and facilities are able to accommodate the needs of that patient or in larger scale emergencies, multiple patients. The system also has the ability to bridge with our federal partners in providing important real-time bed availability by integrating with the National Hospital Available Beds for Emergencies and Disasters System, called HAvBED. HAvBED provides a larger view of resources available within a region or nationwide.

The second module of PHEMS is the Patient Tracking System, or PTS, which you will learn how to use in this manual. PTS allows direct EMS-to-hospital notification of an incoming patient and the accurate tracking of a patient from the initial point of encounter by EMS personnel to that patient's final healthcare destination. PTS also has the ability to handle tracking of patients during a mass-casualty incident or MCI. This system is being built to link the federal patient tracking system, called the Joint Patient Assessment and Tracking System or JPATS, which is used for disasters of national significance.

The third module of PHEMS is the Electronic Patient Care Report or ePCR, which should be available in 2012. Patient data that is entered into the system by EMS personnel will be translated into a final Patient Care Report, saving time as filling out a paper form will no longer be needed.

3



The final module of PHEMS is the event calendar, which allows emergency management partners to enter, track and search for emergency preparedness and response training exercises and opportunities, allowing for better coordination of planning and training. The information can also be put into the National Exercise Schedule, to enhance regional and national coordination of exercises.

The Patient Tracking System

The Patient Tracking System, commonly referred to as PTS, is a software application with two specific functions, EMS-to-hospital notification of an incoming patient and individual patient tracking. PTS allows for point to point tracking of routine patients or in the case of a Mass Casualty Incident, or MCI, when many patients are involved and the resources of one hospital can get overwhelmed. PTS is designed to share vital patient information with the hospital and allows for more time on patient care.

All EMTs are required by Rhode Island Department of Health Prehospital Care Protocols to use PTS to make notification to the receiving facility prior to arrival. Use of this system by EMS does not preclude a call to medical control. EMS should do both.

A major advantage of using PTS over calling the ED for notification is that it usually takes less time to enter information than it takes to talk to a Hospital Staff Member on the phone-especially for a non- critical patient. Upon arrival at the ED, the staff there will already be aware of the patient's name, date of birth and chief complaint.

PTS also aids hospital staff in managing the flow of patients coming into their facility, preparing for surge in the event of an MCI, and monitoring daily surges of non-MCI patients when EMS volume is high.

As you are about to learn, the Patient Tracking System is an easy-to-navigate software program enabling EMS personnel to make direct and real-time contact with the receiving health care facility



Rhode Island Department of Health Prehospital Care Protocol

Effective 8/1/2011, the Rhode Island Department of Health Prehospital Care Protocols states that for those services participating in the RI Patient Tracking System (PTS), the EMT is required to utilize the PTS system, if available. In such cases, the PTS entry shall serve as the routine prearrival notification to hospital staff.

Computer Connection

The PTS software application is internet based. There is no software to download.

This connection is completed by obtaining a unique network number from the designated computer and registering it with the server. This unique number is called the MAC Address (Media Access Control address). This allows the computer to be recognized by the system automatically eliminating the need for user name and password.

Website address

https://www.rimedicalresponse.org/PTS

System Components

Laptop Computer

The Patient Tracking System is accessed via a laptop computer.

Panasonic CF-19 laptop computers have been provided to EMS agencies.

This "Toughbook" computer is a fully-rugged and convertible PC. It is housed in a magnesium alloy case, which makes it is able to withstand drops, shocks, vibration and extremes in temperature. Because it has no cooling fans, the computer may be very warm to the touch. This is normal. The keypad and ports on the laptop are sealed to protect it from various weather conditions.

This laptop features a touchscreen which can be transformed (rotated, and then folded down – LCD screen facing up) into a handwriting or drawing tablet.

The battery on these laptops was built to last more than four hours. However, it may need to be recharged, using the provided docking station and/or AC adaptor.

Panasonic CF-19 Laptop

Barcode Scanner

If your PTS laptop has been equipped with a barcode scanner, this component can be used to input wristband numbers into the PTS.

In order for the barcode scanner to work, the laptop must be in the docking station. Although each patient's barcode number could be entered into the system manually, this device will reduce entry errors and help the process run more smoothly and efficiently.

Services who deploy PTS equipment in a portable environment, may not have received barcode scanners. If your PTS system does not include a barcode scanner, you can still enter the barcode number manually via the onscreen or computer keyboard.



Symbol Barcode Scanner

Wristbands

EMS personnel will give each patient one of two types of wristbands (one for a Mass Casualty Incident, one for a routine incident - see below). These wristbands have barcodes which can be scanned into the PTS using the barcode scanner. Under each barcode is the ID number for that bracelet which may be entered manually in case of a scanner malfunction.

In the event of a routine incident, this type of wristband shall be utilized:



In the event of an MCI, emergency personnel shall use this type of wristband:



Optional Front Screen

Your vehicle may be equipped with a touch screen display in the front of the vehicle. This will show a duplicate image of the laptop screen display. The touch screen display will also allow you to control the laptop from the front of the vehicle. The laptop has to be in the docking station and front screen option enabled. To enable the front the screen from the laptop, press and hold the blue "fn" key (bottom left corner of keyboard) and press F3 key. If the laptop is restarted while outside of the dock, you will have to re-enable the front screen for it to work.



Entering Patient Information

Step 1: Access Patient Tracking System (PTS) Website

Click on the Internet Explorer icon on the desktop. Once Internet Explorer window opens, the PTS webpage should be automatically displayed. If another website is displayed, click on the Favorites Tab and select Patient Tracking System. This should automatically open the PTS window.

If you are having problems accessing the PTS website, please refer to the Troubleshooting Guide at the end of this manual.

Step 2: Enter ID Band/Tag Number

Make sure the cursor is flashing in the ID band/Tag Number box on the screen. If it is not, use the touch screen and click on the box to make the curser appear. Take a new PTS wristband and scan the barcode. In order for the scanner to read the barcode, it must be held at least 4 to 5 inches away. When scanning the barcode, start with the wristband close to the scanner (with the red "X" on the barcode) and slowly move it away until you hear a beep. The patient's barcode number should then appear on the screen and automatically go to step 2 (Select MCI screen).

You may also enter the barcode number manually and then click next to continue. You can use either the touch screen or keyboard to enter the ID Band/Tag Number.



TIP: If no number is entered when you scan or type in the patient's tag number, then click on the Tag Number box and try again

8



If the wristband used is already in the system, you will receive a message indicating that the number has already been assigned to another patient. Acquire a new band, press OK to return to the Patient ID band screen and repeat the scanning steps.

ſ	The ID Band/Tag Number #TEST is already assigned to another patient. Please enter a different ID Band/Tag Number
	Ok

Step 3: Select MCI

If the patient <u>was not involved</u> in a Multiple Casualty Incident (MCI), select: "**Routine Patient** (**No associated MCI**)".

If the patient <u>was involved</u> in an ongoing MCI and it is listed on the screen, select that MCI for the patient.

NOTE: It is very important that patients that are involved in a multiple casualty incident are always associated with an already established or newly created MCI event in PTS. This will allow state officials to properly track patients from such an event.

Nev	v Patient	Active Pa	DATA NOT YET SENT	Patients
Select	MCI:			
			ROUTINE PATIENT No associated MCI	
			No MCIs Declared	
				_
			Declare <i>new</i> MCI	
« P	revious			



If the MCI has not yet been declared, click the "**Declare** *new* **MCI**" button to create one for other PTS users. You will be prompted to make sure you wish to enter a new MCI incident. If so, click "YES" and "OK". Other responders will then be able to enter their patients under the newly created MCI. This will also trigger an email notification of the event to certain Rhode Island Department of Health staff.

Declare a <i>new</i>	MCI?
Yes	No

You will now have the option to give the MCI a title. Naming the MCI helps other responders in selecting the appropriate MCI, especially when multiple incidents are occurring simultaneously. This step is optional, yet strongly recommended if time allows. After naming the MCI, press the "Declare" button.

री- Curren	Cransport: Rescue #3, Warwick Fire Department (Michael Blane) Urrent Time: 08/01/2012 11:40:44 Last Communication: 08/01/2012 11:40:44 Co									Comm	HARI nunication Status: Online re <i>new</i> MCI	
Ente	er (optio	onal) MC	I Title:				1					
	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 0 / Backspace											
	Q	W	E	R	Т	Y	U	I	0	P	-	+
	A	S	D	F	G	Н	J	к	L	:	1	&
	Z	X	С	V		ace →	В	N	M	,	•	Clear
	Cancel										C	Declare



NOTE: It is also possible to declare an MCI on the Patient Tracking System without scanning a tracking band and/or entering patient information.

After accessing the Patient Tracking System website, you will notice a yellow colored "**Declare** *new* **MCI**" button in the upper right-hand corner of the screen. You can press this button to declare a new MCI without having to enter a patient into the system. You will then be prompted to confirm your selection and enter a title for the MCI, as stated above.



Step 4: Select Triage Code

If the patient was involved in an MCI, select the color code that matches the patients triage tag.

TIP: On most MCI events, a patient may already have been triaged prior to being placed into the transport vehicle. One of the bar code labels may be removed from the MCI Tag to scan into the Patient Tracking System.





Select the proper triage code per RI EMS Protocols based on the severity of the patient's injury or illness.



Step 5: Enter Patient Last Name

Enter the patient's LAST NAME. Click Next.

If patient's name is unknown, type "UNKNOWN"



Step 6: Enter Patient First Name

Enter the patient's FIRST NAME. Click Next.



Step 7: Enter Patient Middle Initial/Name (Optional)

Enter the patient's MIDDLE NAME or MIDDLE INITIAL. Click Next.



Step 8: Enter Date of Birth

Enter in the patient's date of birth in (MM/DD/YYYY) format. Click "Next".

If the information is entered is in the wrong format or is an invalid date (i.e. 02/31/2011), the "**Next**" button will be shaded and box surrounding the date will be red.

TIP: If this information is unavailable, just click ADULT, CHILD, or INFANT.

*	PAT	PATIENT TRACKING SYSTEM			HA	
Transport: Unit #4, PTS ENS Training (Kerri Lussier) Current Time: 04/29/2010 09:43:39		Last Commu	nication: 04/29/	2010 09:43:30		Communication Status: 0
New Patient SMITH, J. #1234567	Patients					
Enter Patient Date Of Birth (MM/DD/YYYY):						
		06/	27/	1983		
	1	2	3	FURKNOW ADULT		
	4	5	6	CHILD		
	7	8	9	INFANT		
	Seckapaca	0	chear Ø			
« Previous						Next »

Step 9: Select Gender

*	PATI		I	HARI
Transport: Unit #4, PTS EMS Training (Kerri Lussier) Current Time: 04(29/2010 09:44:32		Last Communication: 04/29/2010 09:44:31		Communication Status: Online
New Patient SMITH, J. #1	234567 Patients			
Select Patient Gender:				
	Male	Female	Not Known	
				,
« Previous				

Step 10: Select Incident Type

The patient tracking system is only capable of designating the patient's <u>most serious</u> medical condition. Due to this fact, you must decide if the patient's most serious medical condition is related to an injury or an illness, based on your assessment of the patient. Select the appropriate choice.

- For Trauma, follow steps 10.1 10.3
- For Medical go to step 10.4 10.5

NOTE - Some choices will automatically bring up more applicable choices not listed here. See Appendix A for full list of choices available.

*					
Transport: Unit #4, PTS EMS Training (Kerri Lussier) Current Time: 04/29/2010 09-46:41	Last Communication:	04/29/2010 09:46:31	Communication Status: Online		
New Patient SMITH, J. #1234567	Patients				
Select Incident Type:					
	Trauma / Injury	Medical / Illness / Non-Trauma			
« Previous					



Step 10.1: Trauma - Select Primary Injury Cause

If the patient is suffering from a Trauma/Injury, you will be brought to the following screen. Select the Mechanism of Injury.

New	v Patient SMITH	, J. #43809249	Patients	
Select	Assault	Burns / Electrocution	Drowning	Environmental / Animal
	Fall	Hazardous Material	Injury	Vehicular
	Other Injury	Undetermined Injury		
« Pi	revious			

Step 10.2: Trauma - Select the Primary Injury Location

New Patient SMITH, J. #43809249 Patients									
Abdomen Back Chest Eve									
		Buck							
	Foot	General / Global	Genitalia	Hand					
	Head / Face	Hip / Pelvis	Lower Extremity	Neck					
	Upper Extremity	Other							
« P I	« Previous								



Step 10.3: Trauma - Select Primary Injury Type

Nev	v Patient	SMITH	, J. #43809249 DATA NOT YET SENT	Patients		
Select	Injury Type:					
	Amputation		Bleeding - Controlled	Blee Uncor	ding - ntrolled	Burn
	Crush		Dislocation / Fracture	Gun	ishot	Impalement / Foreign Body
	Laceration		Pain without Swelling / Bruising	Punc	ture / tab	Soft Tissue Swelling / Bruising
	Other Ir	njury	Multiple Injuries			
« Pi	revious			_		

Step 10.4: Medical - Select Suspected Illness

Nev	New Patient SMITH, J. #43809249 Patients									
Select	Select Illness:									
	Allergic Reaction	Behavioral / Psychiatric	Cardiac	Diabetic						
	Enviromental	GI Problem	Hemorrhage	Illness						
	Neurological	OB / GYN	Pain (Non-Cardiac)	Poisoning / Overdose						
	Respiratory / Airway	Shock / Hypovolemia	Other Illness	Undetermined Illness						
« Pi	« Previous									

DEP R ALENT OF HOLE

Step 10.5: Medical - Select Illness Detail

New Patient Act	ive Patient: #565	56545 Patients		
Select Illness "Cardiac"	Detail:			
	Cardiac Arrest	Cardiac Dysrhythmia	Chest Pain / Discomfort	Hypertensive Crisis
	ST-Elevated MI (STEMI)	Other Symptoms		
« Previous				

Step 11: Enter Clinical Note

You may enter a brief note about the patient's condition or treatment (limited to 70 characters). The hospital will have the ability to read the note once they "Acknowledge" your patient on their computer.

Ne	ew Pa	tient	SAMP		Y, J. #	*8743	242 F	Patien	ts				
Ente	er Clinic	al Note:											_
L													
	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	0	/	Backspace	
	Q	W	E	R	Т	Y	U	I	0	P	-	+	
	A	S	D	F	G	H	C	К	L	#	%	&	
	Z	X	С	V	s,	pace →	В	N	М	,	•	Clear Ø	I
«	Previou	IS										Next »	

BEAR WARNT OF HAL

Step 12: Select Receiving Healthcare Facility

Choose which health care facility which the patient will be transported to. Each hospital's diversion status is displayed in real time as queried from the Hospital Capacity System.

- Facilities that are <u>accepting</u> will be shaded green with an "A" in parenthesis
- Facilities that are <u>diverting</u> will be shaded red with a "**D**" in parenthesis
- Facilities that have been <u>forced open</u> will also be shaded red and will be marked with a "**F**" in parenthesis.
- Facilities that are <u>closed</u> due to an internal or external disaster will be shaded black with an "**X**" in parenthesis.
- Facilities that are <u>offline</u> will be shaded gray with a "?" in parenthesis
- Facilities that are currently <u>not in operation</u> will be grayed out and not selectable

During a disease outbreak or other special circumstances, you may be directed by the Department of Health to transport an "Alternate Care Site". You can access these facilities or facilities in other states by selecting the appropriate tab in the upper right corner of the screen.



NOTE - When using PTS for training, always select "SIMULATION HOSPITAL" as the receiving facility. The simulation hospital is listed on the second screen which can be accessed by clicking the down arrow button shown under list of hospitals.



Step 13: Select Estimated Time of Arrival

 New Patient
 TEST PATIE..., J. #9999999991
 Patients

 Select ETA:
 0 - 5 min
 5 - 10 min
 10-15 min

 15-20 min
 20-25 min
 25-30 min

 > 30 min

Select the estimated the time of arrival at the receiving health care facility.

Step 14: Review Summary

A summary of the information entered will appear. If you need to change any information, click the "**Edit**" button for the field you need to change. If all of the information entered is correct, click "**Submit Patient**"

TIP - If any of the information is in red, it has not yet been submitted into the PTS. When the text turns blue, submission to the PTS has been successful.

New Patient TEST PATIE, J. #9999999991 Patients	
Patient Summary:	
Edit 9999999991 ID Band/Tag Number Edit Last Name Edit First Name Edit Middle Initial/Name	Submit Patient
Edit ROUTINE PATIENT	
Edit GREEN (Minor) Triage Code	Arrived
Edit ADULT Date of Birth Edit Gender	
Edit Medical / Illness / Non-Trauma Incident Type	Elopement
Edit Allergic Reaction Suspected Illness	
Edit Simulation Hospital (?) (RI) Receiving Facility Edit 0 - 5 min ETA	Transferred Out of RI-PTS



Step 15: Hospital Call Back

The receiving facility may request you to contact them directly by phone. If a callback is requested, the following message will appear on your PTS screen. This will be accompanied by an audible alert tone. The phone number to call back will be displayed on also.



Step 16: Changes in Patient Information or Reciving Facility

If at any time, after the patient information is submitted, information needs to be changed, the change can be made by the EMT. Simply press the edit button next to the appropriate field, which will bring you to that corresponding entry screen. Select the updated information and press "**Return**". Once back at the summary screen you must now select the "**Update Patient**" button.

NOTE – Although it is possible to change receiving facilities, it is <u>required</u> that you call both of the facilities and advise them of the change. This is required because neither hospital will receive a PTS notification when you make the change.



Step 17: Adding Multiple Patients

More than one patient may be entered simply by pressing the "**New Patient**" tab at the top of the screen. This will bring up a fresh patient entry screen, then proceed again starting with Step 1.

Patients can then be managed on the top right corner labeled "**Patients**". If you need to make any changes to one of the patients, click on the patients name and that will bring up the summary screen for that patient.

New Patient	SMITH, A. #4343 Data Sent: Tue Aug 30 23:09:00 E	353553 EDT 2011	Patients
Select Patient to M	anage:		
	SMITH, J. #450948 Tue Aug 30 23:07:32 EDT 2011 Data Sent: Tue Aug 30 23:08:25 EDT 2011	SM #434 Tue Aug 30 2: Data Sent: Tue A 2	ITH, A. 1 353553 3:08:32 EDT 2011 Mg 30 23:09:00 EDT 2011

Step 18: Final Dispositon

When patient arrives at the receiving health care facility, click "**Arrived**". The PTS screen will be cleared and ready for your next patient.

- If the patient refuses transport to reciving facility after patient information has already been submitted into PTS system, choose "Elopement".
- If patient is transferred to another EMS vehicle, a helicopter, or non-participating hospital, choose "**Transferred out of RI-PTS**"

TIP: If more than one patient is being transported, then can all be arrived at the same time from the "Patients" screen by clicking "**All Arrived**"

NOTE: The use of the "Arrived" button is an important function of the PTS system. Not only does it allow the hospital to access and manage the patient, but it will also clear the current patient from your screen and prepare you for the next patient.





Troubleshooting

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)

- 1) Why do I need to use PTS?
- 2) Why won't the barcode scanner read the bracelet?
- 3) When I scan the bracelet, why does a message box appear that tells me that the bracelet is already assigned to another patient?
- 4) What do I do if the scanner accidentally scanned a bar code and a number is entered?
- 5) Can I type in a bracelet number on my own instead of scanning it?
- 6) Can I use the keyboard on the laptop to enter information instead of using the touchscreen?
- 7) What do I do if I started filling out patient information and then don't transport the patient?
- 8) Should I call the hospital when I mark the patient as a RED?
- 9) Is it ok to call the hospital even though I submit the patient information through PTS?
- 10) I forgot to click arrived at facility and patient record is still listed, what do I do?
- 11) What happens if I forget to click "Arrived"
- 12) How do I change patient information after I click submit?
- 13) What do I do if the patient's medical illness or trauma type is not listed?
- 14) What should I enter when the patient has multiple injuries to different parts of the body?
- 15) What should I enter if the patient has multiple medical problems that are being treated?
- 16) What should I enter if the patient has a medical problem as well as a trauma injury?
- 17) Why does PTS respond "connection if unavailable" when I attempt to submit information?
- 18) Why do I get a pop up message when I attempt to close the Internet Explorer window?
- 19) What is considered an MCI?
- 20) Who is responsible for clearing MCI's off the screen when the MCI is over?
- 21) What do I do if I accidently declare a new MCI?
- 22) Can I edit a patient's information after I click arrived?
- 23) Can I view a past patient's information that I can't see anymore?
- 24) Who do I contact for technical support when I have a problem?
- 25) What do I do when I don't know a patient's name or birthdate?
- 26) How can I see if a Hospital is diverting?
- 27) I closed the PTS window. How do I start it up again?
- 28) I opened up Internet Explorer and I don't see the PTS window. What do I do?
- 29) When I try to open up PTS, I get an error message stating the page can't be displayed?
- 30) When I open up the PTS, why does it ask for a user name and password?
- 31) Why does it display "Activation Failed" when I attempt to activate the PTS website?
- 32) When I'm typing, why do numbers appear instead of the letters?
- 33) Why is my front monitor not displaying the computer screen?
- 34) How do I report a problem or suggestion in regards to the PTS system?

23

PHODE ISLAND ELT

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)

1) Why do I need to use PTS?

All EMT's are required by protocol to make notification to the receiving facility prior to arrival. The PTS also helps ER staff manage the flow of patients coming in to their facility. A major advantage of using the PTS over calling the ER for notification is that it usually takes less time to enter information than it takes to talk to the nurse, especially for a non-critical patient. Upon arrival at the ER, the staff will already be aware of the patient's name, date of birth and chief complaint.

2) Why won't the barcode scanner read the bracelet?

This problem may be caused by one of the following:

- 1. Sometimes it may be difficult to properly line up the bracelet with the scanner's laser cross hair pattern. The scanner must be at least 4 to 5 inches away from the wrist band. The center target cross hair pattern must be aimed at the square bar code on the bracelet.
- 2. If the scanner laser cross hair pattern is not showing, the lighting in the patient compartment might be too dim. The scanner is motion activated and needs enough ambient light in the patient compartment to detect any movement. Try turning on additional lights.
- 3. The scanner might not be working properly. Make sure that the red LED on the front of the scanner is illuminated.

3) When I scan the bracelet, why does a message box appear that tells me that the bracelet is already assigned to another patient?

You might have a bracelet that might have already been used that was not attached to a previous patient. Dispose of the bracelet and use a new one.

4) What do I do if the scanner accidentally scanned a bar code and a number is entered?

The bar code scanner reads any bar code. Almost every item in the world is labeled with a bar code for inventory tracking or item identification. Click the back button, then press the Clear key on bottom right corner of on screen keyboard



5) Can I type in a bracelet number on my own instead of scanning it?

Yes, the Patient ID Band/Tag Number is located just below the square bar code and is a 7 digit number. You can enter it using either the touch screen or laptop keyboard.



6) Can I use the keyboard on the laptop to enter information instead of using the touch screen?

Yes, you can use the keyboard to enter information into fields such as Patient ID Band/Tag Number, Name and date of birth.

7) What do I do if I started filling out patient information and then don't transport the patient?

If you have already clicked "Submit", press the Elopement button. Call the ER to notify them of the change.

If you have *not* clicked "Submit", then click the refresh button which is located to the right of the website address or close Internet Explorer and restart PTS.

8) Should I call the hospital when I mark the patient as a RED?

Yes, a RED patient is a critical patient and direct communication with ER staff will be extremely beneficial to patient care. The ER most likely will request a Call Back if you mark the patient as a RED.

9) Is it ok to call the hospital even though I submit the patient information through PTS?

Yes, if the patient's condition is unusual, it will help to contact the ER to give them more information to help them properly prepare for the arrival of the patient (i.e. notify respiratory therapy, security, trauma room, request medical control, etc).

10) I forgot to click arrived at facility and patient record is still listed hours later, what do I do?

Select the tab with patient's name and then click Arrived. This may be done at any time after arriving at the hospital.

11) What happens if I forget to click Arrived?

The hospital will not be able to access the patient in the PTS until you click "Arrived".

12) How do I change patient information after I click submit?

On the final page, you can press the edit button next to each field of information. This will bring you back to that field. Make the change and then click Return. Then click Update Patient.

13) What do I do if the patient's medical illness or trauma type is not listed?

Enter the closest applicable choice listed. Call the ER to inform them of the patient's condition.

14) What should I enter when the patient has multiple trauma injuries to different parts of the body?

Select the part of the body with the most severe injury. Consider calling the ER to give



them more information.

15) What should I enter if the patient has multiple medical problems that are being treated?

Enter the primary or most severe medical condition applicable. Consider calling the ER to give them more information.

16) What should I enter if the patient has a medical problem as well as a trauma injury?

Enter the most severe condition for the patient whether it be medical or trauma. Consider calling the ER to give them more information.

17) Why does PTS respond "connection if unavailable" when I attempt to submit information?

This is most likely due to poor signal strength in your area (much like your cell phone bars). Wait for the connection status in the upper right hand corner to display "Online". Then retry clicking submit button.

18) Why do I get a pop up message when I attempt to close the Internet Explorer window?

There is already patient information that has been entered into the PTS system website. This may have been accidental, or possibly a patient that has not been arrived.

Press Cancel to return to the PTS without losing any information.

Press "Arrived" to clear any existing patient information prior to closing the window.

Windows I	nternet Explorer
	Are you sure you want to navigate away from this page? -= WARNING =- 1 patient is being managed. All unsubmitted data will be lost
	Press OK to continue, or Cancel to stay on the current page.
	OK Cancel



19) What is considered an MCI?

A Multiple Casualty Incident (MCI) is one that generates large numbers of patients and often makes traditional EMS response ineffective because of special circumstances surrounding the event. Such incidents may require varying levels of response.

20) Who is responsible for clearing MCI's off the screen when the MCI is over?

Rhode Island Department of Health staff closely monitors the PTS system and clear inactive MCIs. HEALTH staff is notified via email whenever a MCI is declared.

21) What do I do if I accidently declare a new MCI?

Notify your EMS coordinator and/or dispatcher as soon as possible. They can notify a HEALTH Administrator and they will clear it from the PTS system. If rapid notification of accidental MCI declaration is not received, a representative from the State will attempt to contact your service directly.

22) Can I edit a patient's information after I click arrived?

No. If you accidentally clicked arrived, you will need to notify the ER by phone of any changes to patient's information or condition.

23) Can I view a past patient's information that I can't see anymore?

No, this is because of HIPPA regulations.

24) Who do I contact for technical support when I have a problem?

Notify your EMS coordinator who will then contact a PTS Administrator.

25) What do I do when I don't know a patient's name or birthdate?

Enter UNKNOWN for patient's last name and skip first name and middle initial.

If you do not know the patients date of birth, select Adult, Child or Infant.

26) How can I see if a Hospital is diverting?

When you get to the section of PTS where you designate where you are going to transport to (after scanning ID band and entering patient information, etc.), the hospital selections will be color coded as to their current status.



New Patient	EST PATIE	J. #999999999	91 Patients	
Select Receiving Facility:	(A) (D) (F) Accepting Diverting Forced Open	(X) (?) (?) Closed Status ? N/A	IMA	CT ACS
Fatima (A)	Hasbro (A)	Kent (A)	Landmark (0)	Memorial (A)
Miriam (A)	Newport (A)	Rhode Island (A)	Roger Williams (A)	South County (A)
VA (A)	Westerly (A)	Women & Infants (A)	Bradley (A)	Butler (A)

27) I closed the PTS window. How do I start it up again?

Open Internet Explorer. It should automatically log into the PTS website. If it doesn't, click on favorites and select "*Patient Tracking System*". This will open up the PTS window.

If "*Patient Tracking System*" is not listed in your favorites, you can enter the website in the website browser address field:

https://www.rimedicalresponse.org/pts

NOTE: Make sure you put an 'S' at the end of HTTP in the website so it is HTTPS

28) I opened up Internet Explorer and I don't see the PTS window. What do I do?

Click on favorites and select Patient Tracking System. This will open up the PTS window.

If Patient Tracking System is not listed in your favorites, you can enter the website in the website browser address field:

https://www.rimedicalresponse.org/pts

(NOTE: Make sure you put an 'S' at the end of HTTP in the website so it is HTTPS)



29) When I try to open up PTS, I get an error message stating the page can't be displayed?

- 1) Check the internet connection. If no internet connection is available, try reconnecting to network.
- 2) If you are unable to connect to the internet, contact your EMS Coordinator and explain what is happening.

30) When I open up the PTS, why does it ask for a user name and password?

Someone may have performed maintenance on the laptop. You will have to reactivate the link to the PTS website.

Go to your favorites and click on PTS Activation

If PTS Activation is not listed in your favorites, then enter the following into the web browser address box:

https:www/rimedicalresponse.org/phems/activate.aspx

(NOTE: Make sure you put an 'S' at the end of HTTP in the website so it is HTTPS)

You will get a pop box asking you if you want to perform this function. Click YES.

31) Why does it display "Activation Failed" when I attempt to activate the PTS website? The security settings may have been altered. Contact your EMS coordinator.

32) When I'm typing, why do numbers appear instead of the letters?

The number lock function is enabled. Press the "NumLk" in the upper right hand corner of the laptop keyboard. Press it only 1 time!! Then try typing again.

33) Why is my front monitor not displaying the computer screen?

- 1. Ensure that the power is turned on to the monitor (the power button is on right side of the monitor).
- 2. The laptop has to be in the docking station and front screen option is enabled. To enable the front the screen from the laptop, press and hold the blue "fn" key (bottom left corner of keyboard) and press F3 key. If the laptop is restarted, you will have to enable the front screen for it to work.
- 3. If this does not work, contact your EMS coordinator.



34) How do I report a problem or suggestion in regards to the PTS system?

Problems that require immediate correction and are rendering the PTS system nonfunctional should be directed to your EMS Coordinator as soon as possible. This person has access to the PTS System Administrator's Manual and may be able to resolve the problem. This person also has access to contact information for the appropriate HEALTH personnel who can further assist with the problem.

If the problem is minor and not rendering the PTS system non-functional, such as a "bug" in the system, you can send feedback directly to HEALTH personnel.

After accessing the PTS system, click on the speech bubble just to the right of the "Patient Tacking System" title at the top of the page.



This will open a pop-up box which will ask you to explain the problem or suggestion in detail.

1) Choose "PTS" as the Category

2) Choose the appropriate Type of problem

3) Enter detail about the problem or suggestion.

4) Optionally, you may enter your name and email address if you would like to be advised of the status of your request.

5) Click "Submit"

Windows Internet Explorer
icalresponse.org/PHEMS/Feedback.aspx?t=864a399c-068c-422b
UBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY MANA
Feedback Submission Form
PTS
Select
Connectivity Functionality Hardware Policy Priviliges Software Sound Troubleshooting Warranty



Appendix A: Incident Type Choices

<u>Illness</u>	<u>Illness Detail</u>
Allergic Reaction	Airway Compromise
	Anaphylaxis
	Itching/Rash
	Other Reaction
Behavioral/Psychiatric	Homicidal Ideations
	Suicidal Ideations
	Other Issue
Cardiac	Cardiac Arrest
	Cardiac Dysrhythmia
	Chest Pain / Discomfort
	Hypertensive Crisis
	ST-Elevated MI (STEMI)
	Other Symptoms
Diabetic	Hyperglycemia
	Hypoglycemia
	Other Symptoms
Environmental	Hyperthermia
	Hypothermia
	Other Problem
GI Problem	Diarrhea
	Difficulty Swallowing
	GI Bleed
	Nausea / Vomiting
	Other Problem
Hemorrhage	
Illness	Dehydration
	Fever
	Malaise
	Weakness
Neurological	Altered Mental Status
	Dizziness
	Paralysis
	Seizure
	Stroke / CVA
	Syncopal Episode
	Other Symptoms



OB/GYN	Infant Delivery
	Labor (Preterm)
	Labor (Term)
	Vaginal Bleeding
	Other Problem
Pain (Non-Cardiac)	Abdominal Pain
	Back Pain
	Chest Pain (Non-Cardiac)
	Eye Pain
	Foot Pain
	General / Global Pain
	Genitalia Pain
	Hand Pain
	Head / Face Pain
	Hip / Pelvis Pain
	Lower Extremity Pain
	Neck Pain
	Upper Extremity Pain
	Other Pain
Poisoning/Overdose	Alcohol Intoxication
	Drug Overdose
	Poisoning
	Other Issue
Respiratory / Airway	Airway Obstruction
	Choking Episode
	Difficulty Breathing
	Respiratory Arrest
	Other Problem
Shock / Hypovolemia	
Other Illness	
Undetermined Illness	

ſ



Injury Cause

Injury Case Detail

Assault	Firearm	
	Rape / Sexual	
	Stabbing / Cutting	
	Struck	
	Other	
Burns / Electrocution	Electrocution	
	Fire / Flames	
	Lightning	
	Smoke Inhalation	
	Other	
Drowning		
Environmental / Animal	Animal Bite	
	Cold Injury	
	Venomous Sting	
	Other	
Fall	Greater than 20 feet	
	Less than 20 feet	
Hazardous Material	Chemical exposure	
	Radiation exposure	
	Toxic Inhalation	
	Other	
Injury	Athletic	
	Entrapment	
	Explosion	
	Firearm	
	Stabbing / Cutting	
	Striking	
Vehicular	ATV Collision	
	Aircraft Collision	
	Bicycle Collision	
	Motorcycle Collision	
	Motor Vehicle Collision	
	Pedestrian Hit by Vehicle	
	Watercraft Collision	
	Other	
Other Injury		
Undetermined Injury		



Abdomen
Back
Chest
Eye
Foot
General / Global
Genitalia
Hand
Head / Face
Hip / Pelvis
Lower Extremity
Neck
Upper Extremity
Other

Injury Location

Injury Type